

# Foglight<sup>®</sup> Evolve 6.0.0 Virtual Appliance Installation and Setup Guide



#### © 2021 Quest Software Inc.

#### ALL RIGHTS RESERVED.

This guide contains proprietary information protected by copyright. The software described in this guide is furnished under a software license or nondisclosure agreement. This software may be used or copied only in accordance with the terms of the applicable agreement. No part of this guide may be reproduced or transmitted in any form or by any means, electronic or mechanical, including photocopying and recording for any purpose other than the purchaser's personal use without the written permission of Quest Software Inc.

The information in this document is provided in connection with Quest Software products. No license, express or implied, by estoppel or otherwise, to any intellectual property right is granted by this document or in connection with the sale of Quest Software products. EXCEPT AS SET FORTH IN THE TERMS AND CONDITIONS AS SPECIFIED IN THE LICENSE AGREEMENT FOR THIS PRODUCT, QUEST SOFTWARE ASSUMES NO LIABILITY WHATSOEVER AND DISCLAIMS ANY EXPRESS, IMPLIED OR STATUTORY WARRANTY RELATING TO ITS PRODUCTS INCLUDING, BUT NOT LIMITED TO, THE IMPLIED WARRANTY OF MERCHANTABILITY, FITNESS FOR A PARTICULAR PURPOSE, OR NON-INFRINGEMENT. IN NO EVENT SHALL QUEST SOFTWARE BE LIABLE FOR ANY DIRECT, INDIRECT, CONSEQUENTIAL, PUNITIVE, SPECIAL OR INCIDENTAL DAMAGES (INCLUDING, WITHOUT LIMITATION, DAMAGES FOR LOSS OF PROFITS, BUSINESS INTERRUPTION OR LOSS OF INFORMATION) ARISING OUT OF THE USE OR INABILITY TO USE THIS DOCUMENT, EVEN IF QUEST SOFTWARE HAS BEEN ADVISED OF THE POSSIBILITY OF SUCH DAMAGES. Quest Software makes no representations or warranties with respect to the accuracy or completeness of the contents of this document and reserves the right to make changes to specifications and product descriptions at any time without notice. Quest Software does not make any commitment to update the information contained in this document.

If you have any questions regarding your potential use of this material, contact:

Quest Software Inc. Attn: LEGAL Dept. 4 Polaris Way Aliso Viejo, CA 92656

Refer to our website (https://www.quest.com) for regional and international office information.

#### Patents

Quest Software is proud of our advanced technology. Patents and pending patents may apply to this product. For the most current information about applicable patents for this product, please visit our website at https://www.quest.com/legal.

#### Trademarks

Cuest, the Quest logo, and Where next meets now are trademarks and registered trademarks of Quest Software Inc. For a complete list of Quest marks, visit https://www.quest.com/legal/trademark.information.asxx. "Apache TTP Server," Apache. "Apache Tomcat" and "Tomcat" are trademarks of the Apache Software Foundation. Google is a registered trademark of Google Inc. Android, Chrome, Google Play, and Nexus are trademarks of Google Inc. Red Hat, JBcss, the JBoss logo, and Red Hat, Inc. in the U.S. and other countries. Fedora and the Infinity design logo are trademarks of Red Hat, Inc. Microsoft, NET, Active Directory, Internet Explorer, Hyper-V, Office 365, SharePoint, Silverlight, SQL Server, Visual Basic, Windows, Windows, Vista and Windows Server are either registered trademarks or trademarks of International Business Machines Corporation, registered in many jurisdictions worldwide. Java, Oracle, Oracle Solaris, PeopleSoft, Siebel, Sun, WebLogic, and ZFS are trademarks or registered trademarks of Oracle and/or its affiliates in the United States and other countries. SPARC Is a registered trademark of SPARC International, Inc. in the United States and other countries. SPARC Is a registered trademark of SPARC International, Inc. in the United States and other countries. SPARC Is a registered trademark of SPARC International, Inc. in the United States and other countries. Toolucts bearing the SPARC trademark of Linus Torvalds in the United States, other countries, or both. MySQL is a registered trademark of Moepen.DAP Foundation. HP is a registered trademark so ther countries, orbent, MySQL is a registered trademark of Trademark of VMware, Inc. in the United States and/or other jurisdictions. Sybase is a registered trademark of the Mozilla Foundation, "ECIpse Foundation Member," Ecipse Result, Supperson, Ecope Summit," Bulu to Ecipser, "Ecipse Ready," Ecipse Foundation, "Logines," "Ecipse Proposals" are trademarks of Citra Systems, Inc. and/or its affiliates in the U.S. and other countries. SUpare, "Ecipse Foundati their respective owners.

#### Legend

- **WARNING:** A WARNING icon indicates a potential for property damage, personal injury, or death.
- **CAUTION:** A CAUTION icon indicates potential damage to hardware or loss of data if instructions are not followed.
- i IMPORTANT NOTE, NOTE, TIP, MOBILE, or VIDEO: An information icon indicates supporting information.

Foglight Evolve Virtual Appliance Installation and Setup Guide Updated - July 2021 Foglight Evolve Version - 6.0.0

## Contents

Install and configure the virtual appliance	. 5
System requirements	. 5
Install as a VMware virtual appliance	. 6
Installation prerequisites	. 6
Download the virtual appliance	. 7
Deploy the Foglight-Evolve-vApp	. 7
Deploy the Foglight-FGLAM-vApp-fglam	. 8
Power on and initialize the virtual appliance	. 9
Configure the virtual appliance	10
Change the network settings	11
Change the timezone	14
Option 1. Manually change the date	14
Option 2. Manually change the timezone	15
Option 3. Change the hardware clock	15
Option 4. Change the localtime file	15
Option 5. Change the timezone file	15
Configuring anti-virus exclusion settings	16
Ingrade the virtual appliance	17
	17
	17
Upgrade the vApp	17
About Us	19
Technical support resources	19

4

# 1

# Install and configure the virtual appliance

This guide provides instructions for installing and configuring the Foglight<sup>®</sup> Evolve virtual appliance (hereafter called Foglight-Evolve-vApp) and the Foglight FgIAM virtual appliance. The instructions are similar for the two appliances; any specific instructions are noted, where applicable.

The Foglight-Evolve-vApp provides three installers that allow you to select the appropriate version, as needed:

- Foglight-Evolve-vApp-xLarge: install this version if there are less than 10,000 virtual machines deployed in your environment.
  - **NOTE:** Quest strongly recommends that you install *Foglight-Evolve-vApp-xLarge* on a Solid State Drive (SSD) storage; otherwise you might confront with the performance issues.
- Foglight-Evolve-vApp-large: install this version if there are less than 3000 virtual machines deployed in your environment.
- Foglight-Evolve-vApp-standard: install this version if there are less than 1000 virtual machines deployed in your environment.

The Foglight-Evolve-vApp is delivered as a fully configured virtual appliance which contains two or three virtual machines and can be installed on a VMware® vSphere® virtualization platform. Before starting the installation, review the System requirements section, to ensure that your target system meets the requirements.

For more details, see these topics:

- Install as a VMware virtual appliance
- · Power on and initialize the virtual appliance
- · Configure the virtual appliance
- Change the network settings
- Change the timezone

## System requirements

The Foglight-Evolve-vApp-xLarge virtual appliance is configured as three virtual machines:

- *FMS* is allocated with 48GB of Memory, twelve vCPU, and two virtual disks of 20GB and 70GB, respectively.
- FgIAM is allocated with 20GB of Memory, four vCPU, and two virtual disks of 20GB and 70GB, respectively.
- DBS is allocated with 12GB of Memory, four vCPU, and two virtual disks of 20GB and 500GB, respectively.

The Foglight-Evolve-vApp-large virtual appliance is configured as two virtual machines:

- FMS is allocated with 28GB of Memory, six vCPU, and two virtual disks of 20GB and 70GB, respectively.
- DBS is allocated with 12GB of Memory, four vCPU, and two virtual disks of 20GB and 250GB, respectively.

The Foglight-Evolve-vApp-standard virtual appliance is configured as two virtual machines:

5

- FMS is allocated with 12GB of Memory, two vCPU, and two virtual disks of 20GB and 40GB, respectively.
- DBS is allocated with 4GB of Memory, two vCPU, and two virtual disks of 20GB and 120GB, respectively.

The Foglight-FGLAM-vApp-fglam is configured as one virtual machine:

• FgIAM is allocated with 12GB Memory, two vCPU, and one 40GB virtual disk.

These settings must remain unchanged in order for the virtual appliance to work correctly.

VMware® Software Requirements:

• vSphere® 6.0 or later

Next step: Install as a VMware virtual appliance

# Install as a VMware virtual appliance

The VMware® virtual appliance installation involves downloading the virtual appliance, and then deploying it to your VMware environment using the VMware Deploy OVF Template option.

**i NOTE:** This procedure contains instructions for deploying the virtual appliance using the Deploy OVF Template wizard. For complete information about this wizard and other vSphere® Client features, see your vSphere Client documentation.

For details, see these topics:

- Installation prerequisites
- Download the virtual appliance
- Deploy the Foglight-Evolve-vApp
- Deploy the Foglight-FGLAM-vApp-fglam

### Installation prerequisites

Before proceeding with installing the Foglight-Evolve-vApp, ensure that the following prerequisites are met:

- **NOTE:** The Foglight-Evolve-vApp represents *Foglight-Evolve-vApp-xLarge, Foglight-Evolve-vApp-large,* and *Foglight-Evolve-vApp-standard* unless otherwise specified.
  - Verify that you have permissions to deploy OVF templates to the inventory.
  - Do not deploy the virtual appliance from an ESX® host. Deploy it only from the vCenter® Server.
  - DRS is a requirement from VMware for all vApps. If the ESX® host is part of a cluster, enable DRS in the cluster. Otherwise it will not be able to power on the vApp.
  - · Verify that you are connected to a vCenter® Server system with the vSphere® Client.
  - · Verify that at least one internal network is configured.
  - If firewall is enabled on the Agent Manager host, you must ensure that all of the UDP ports used for Netflow collections are open. By default, the UDP port 9995 is only open for Netflow collections on a virtual appliance. To open additional ports, update the /etc/sysconfig/SuSEfirewall2 file.

Next step: Download the virtual appliance

### **Download the virtual appliance**

#### To download the virtual appliance:

- 1 Download the Foglight-Evolve-vApp or Foglight-FGLAM-vApp-fglam, as needed.
- 2 Unzip the compressed (*.zip*) file to a Windows® server or workstation. The zipped file contains the OVF file and five VMDK files.
- 3 Copy the files to a location that is accessible to the VMware® vSphere® Client.

Next step: Deploy the Foglight-Evolve-vApp or Deploy the Foglight-FGLAM-vApp-fglam

## **Deploy the Foglight-Evolve-vApp**

#### To deploy the Foglight-Evolve-vApp:

1 Open the VMware® vSphere® Client and click File > Deploy OVF Template.



The Deploy OVF Template wizard appears.

- 2 Click Browse to navigate to the location of the extracted OVF file and select it. Click Next.
- 3 On the OVF Template Details page, verify the Product and Version number. Click Next.
- 4 On the End User License Agreement page, review the license agreement, click Accept, then click Next.
- 5 On the *Name and Location* page, type a name for the virtual appliance, and select a destination folder. Click **Next**.
- 6 On the Resource Pool page, select a location within the infrastructure hierarchy. Click Next.
- 7 On the Storage page, select the datastore in which that the virtual machine (VM) should reside. Click Next.
- 8 On the Disk Format page, select the type of datastore provisioning.
  - Thick Provision Lazy Zeroed: Creates a virtual disk in a default thick format.
  - **Thick Provision Eager Zeroed**: Creates a type of thick virtual disk that supports clustering features, such as Fault Tolerance.
  - Thin Provision: Creates a disk in thin format.
  - **i NOTE:** Use the "Thin Provision" format if you do not want to use the maximum disk space at deployment, and save on storage space.

**NOTE:** The "Thick Provision Eager Zeroed" format provides about a 10 percent performance improvement over the other two disk formats. VMware recommends that you select the thick provisioned eager-zero option, when possible.

**NOTE:** Snapshots can negatively affect the performance of a virtual machine and typically result in a 25-30 percent degradation for the vCenter® workload. VMware recommends that you do not use "Snapshots".

Click Next.

- 9 On the *Network Mapping* page, map your existing virtual networks to the ones in the deployed template, and then click **Next**.
  - Internal Network: Private network for virtual appliance components to communicate with each other. If you need to have several Foglight-Evolve-vApp virtual appliances running, you must create the dedicated internal network for every vApp (with different names).

To set up the dedicated internal network for every vApp, you must manually reconfigure the static IP of the newer vApp VMs, and change the DBS Internal IP address in the *FMS* VM configuration file.

- Reconfigure static IPs for both *FMS* and *DBS* VMs for the second NIC which is packaged with 192.168.200.1 and 192.168.200.2 IP to a different value. For details, see Change the network settings.
- Change the DB IP in the FMS VMs server.config file to the one set for the DBS VM. Change the line Server.databse.hostwith the new IP in the /home/foglight/Quest/Foglight/config/server.config file.
- External Network: Public network to collect data from the virtual environment.
- i NOTE: The external and internal networks should be configured on the same ESX host. Also the internal network name should be unique inside vCenter® (only one ESX has such network name). If you have only one network, you can assign the same network to the template networks, but only one vApp copy can run in such environment.
- 10 On the *Properties* page, select a time zone to set inside Guest OS. Select Yes to enable FIPS Compliance Mode. Also, implement the following network settings:
  - FMS VM IP Address: IP address for the FMS VM interface. Leave this field blank when using DHCP.
  - VM Netmask: Netmask for the vApps VMs. Leave this field blank when using DHCP.
  - Default Gateway: Default gateway address for the vApps VMs.
  - DNS: Domain name servers for the vApps VMs (separated by a semicolon).

Click Next.

11 Review the deployment settings and click Finish.

When the deployment process is complete, the vApp appears as a virtual machine in the inventory.

### Deploy the Foglight-FGLAM-vApp-fglam

#### To Deploy the Foglight-FGLAM-vApp-fglam:

1 Open the VMware vSphere Client and right click on the folder, select Deploy OVF Template.

1 Select an OVF template	Select an OVF template
2 Select a name and folder	Select an OVF template from remote URL or local file system
3 Select a compute resource	Enter a URL to download and install the OVF package from the Internet, or browse to a
5 Select storage	location accessible from your computer, such as a local hard drive, a network share, or a
6 Ready to complete	CD/DVD drive.
o ready to complete	Ourl
	http   https://remoteserver-address/filetodeploy.ovf   .ova
	Local file
	Choose Files No file chosen
	Select a template to deploy. Use multiple selection to select all the files associated with an
	OVF template (.ovf, .vmdk, etc.)

The Deploy OVF Template wizard appears.

- 2 Click Choose Files to navigate to the location of the extracted OVF file and select it. Click Next.
- 3 On the OVF Template Details page, verify the Product and Version number. Click Next.
- 4 On the End User License Agreement page, review the license agreement, click Accept, then click Next.
- 5 On the Resource Pool page, select a location within the infrastructure hierarchy. Click Next.
- 6 On the Storage page, select the datastore in which that the virtual machine (VM) should reside. Click Next.
- 7 On the *Select Networks* page, select a proper network for "External Network" that allows FgIAM to connect to the existing FMS, and then click **Next**.
- 8 On *Customize template* page, specify the FMS Server IP Address, input the FgIAM Display Name, select a Timezone, select Yes to enable FIPS compliance Mode. Also, implement the following network settings:
  - **FgIAM VM IP Address**: IP address for the FgIAM VM interface. Leave this field blank when using DHCP.
  - VM Netmask: Netmask for the FgIAM VMs. Leave this field blank when using DHCP.
  - Default Gateway: Default gateway address for the FgIAM VM.
  - DNS: Domain name servers for the FgIAM VM (separated each name by a semicolon).

Click Next.

9 Review the deployment settings and click **Finish**.

When the deployment process is complete, the vApp appears as a virtual machine in the inventory.

Next step: Power on and initialize the virtual appliance

# Power on and initialize the virtual appliance

After installing the OVF, you must power on and initialize the virtual machines.

#### To initialize the virtual appliance:

1 Open vCenter®, select the Foglight-Evolve-vApp that you installed, then click Power on the vApp.

9

For Foglight Evolve: Once the appliance is started, it initializes the operating systems on both virtual machines, and starts Foglight Evolve. By default, Pool.ntp.org is used as the Network Time Protocol (NTP) server.

For Foglight for Storage Management: Once the appliance is started, it initializes the operating systems on both virtual machines, and starts Foglight for Storage Management. By default, Pool.ntp.org is used as the Network Time Protocol (NTP) server.

~	
2	wait until the IP address of Foglight Evolve appears in the vCenter Summary tab.

😟 🏨 chi	Getting Started Summary Resource Overview Virtual Machines Resource Allocation Performance Tasks & Events Alarms Permissions Maps
ing nu ⊐ na Pi	General Resources
<ul> <li>pi-esx1.vfs.stc.us.qsft</li> <li>pi-esx2.vfs.stc.us.qsft</li> <li>pi-esx2.vfs.stc.us.qsft</li> <li>pi-esx2.vfs.stc.us.qsft</li> <li>DB5</li> </ul>	vApp Status:         Running         CPU usage:         103 MHz           Product:         Foglight-FVE-FSM-vApp         Memory usage:         25897 MB           Version:         4.1         Storage         Status         Drive Type
FMS pi-fms-vm10	Vendor: Del Software
pirms-vm2 pirfms-vm3 pirfms-vm4	Commands  Power Off  WN Network  Standard port group  MN Network  Standard port group  MN Network  Standard port group
作称 pi-fms-vm5 作称 pi-fms-vm6 作称 pi-fms-vm7 作称 pi-fms-vm9	Suspend Call Settings
-	Annotation
	Edit     Foglight-FVE-FSM-vApp Virtual Appliance v4.1.0

After the IP address appears, it will take several more minutes to start the application server.

- Once that is completed, access Foglight Evolve / Foglight for Storage Management by copying the IP 3 address (either with or without ":8080") on a standard web browser.
- 4 If DHCP is present, the FMS VM acquires an IP address. If you want to assign a static IP address, follow the instruction in the Change the network settings section.
- If you already have other Foglight-Evolve-vApp or FVE-vApp running on the Host/Cluster, you must 5 manually reconfigure the static IP of the newer vApp VMs, and change the DBS Internal IP address in the FMS VM configuration file.
  - a Reconfigure static IPs for both FMS and DBS VMs for the second NIC which is packaged with 192.168.200.1 and 192.168.200.2 IP to a different value. For details, see Change the network settings.
  - b Change the DB IP in the FMS VMs server.config file to the one set for the DBS VM. Change the line Server.databse.host with the new IP in the /home/foglight/Quest/Foglight/config/server.config file.

#### To stop the virtual appliance:

Open vCenter®, select Foglight-Evolve-vApp from the navigation tree, and click Power off vApp.

Next step: Configure the virtual appliance

# Configure the virtual appliance

To begin using Foglight Evolve, open a standard web browser and type the IP address of the Foglight Evolve virtual machine. For a list of validated web browsers, see the System Requirements and Platform Support Guide.

The page loads and requests a user name and password. The default user name is foglight and the default password is foglight\_admin\_password\_placeholder.

Start monitoring your environment:

To collect data from a vCenter®, create at least one VMware® Performance agent, using the Foglight for VMware cartridge automatically installed with Foglight Evolve. For detailed instructions about this topic,

```
10
```

see the *Managing Virtualized Environments User and Reference Guide*, "Configuring Monitoring Agents for Data Collection" section.

To collect data from the storage devices in your environment, you must configure StorageCollector agents, using the Storage & SAN/Storage Environment/Administration dashboard. For more information, refer to the *Foglight for Storage Management User and Reference Guide*.

To collect data from Hyper-V servers in your environment, you must create Hyper-V Performance agents, using the Foglight for Hyper-V cartridge automatically installed with Foglight Evolve. For more information, refer to the *Foglight for Hyper-V User and Reference Guide*.

Next step: If you need to change the static IP address of the FMS VM, see Change the network settings.

# Change the network settings

**i NOTE:** The following procedure should be implemented only after the vApp has completed its initialization, after being deployed and started for the first time. Assigning a static IP address requires a restart of the network services on the virtual machine. Restarting the network before the vApp is initialized interrupts the connection between the *FMS* and *DBS* VMs, and could result in some cartridges not being enabled. The vApp initialization process normally takes about 10 minutes after the vApp is started for the first time. The easiest way to determine that the vApp has completed its initialization is to look at the CPU utilization for the *FMS*. The CPU shows some activity during the initialization, but goes down to just a few percent when the initialization is complete.

Both *FMS* and *DBS* VMs have two NICs — one for communication to the outside and one just for communication to each other. The two NICs that communicate between the VMs have static IPs that should not be changed (192.168.200.1 and 192.168.200.2, respectively).

Change the NICs that are used to communicate to the outside world (that is, eth0) on both FMS and DBS VMs.

If DHCP is enabled, you should see IPs in your range assigned to the *FMS* and *DBS* VMs. If you have these IPs, open a web browser to *http://<FMS IPaddress>* and log in using the user name foglight and password foglight\_admin\_password\_placeholder.





If DHCP does not provide IPs for the FMS and DBS VMs, edit the network settings in the OS.

To configure networking for a static IP, the following information is needed:

- IP address
- Subnet Mask
- Default gateway

• Nameserver(s)

#### To change a static IP address:

- 1 Open a console and log in using the user name root and password F@gli9hT#v01vE.
- 2 Run yast.

The YAST® menu appears.

3 Use the arrow keys to select **System > Network Settings**, then press **Enter**.

YaST Control Center		
Software System Hardware Network Services Security and Users Uirtualization Support Miscellaneous	<pre>/etc/sysconfig Editor Boot Loader Date and Time Fonts Kernel Settings Language Metwork Settings Partitioner Services Manager</pre>	
Help]	[Run] [Q	

4 Tab to **Device** *eth0* and press **F4** to edit this device.

YaST2 - lan @ FMS	
Network Settings _fGlobal Options—Overview—Hostname/DNS—Routing	
Name WTONET3 Ethernet Controller WTONET3 Ethernet Controller 192.168.200.1 eth1	
UPONET3 Ethernet Controller MAC : 00:50:56:b8:18:21 BusID : 0000:03:00.0 * Device Name: eth0 * Started automatically at boot * IP address assigned using DHCP [Add][Edit][Delete]	
L Help] [Cancel]	

5 Tab to Statically assigned IP Address and press the spacebar to select it.

6 Tab to and fill out the **IP Address** and **Subnet Mask Fields**.

YaST2 – Ian 🛛 FMS			
YaSTZ - lan Q FMS Network Card Setup General - Address - Hard Device Type Ethernet ( ) No Link and IP Set ( ) Dynamic Address D (x) Statically Assigne IP Address Additional Address Labe	Gare Configu + eth0 up (Bonding Slaves) [ ] HCP + DHCP bo d IP Address Subnet Mask 1 1] IP Address  Netmask	ration Name Use iBFT Values th version 4 and 6]+ Hostname PHS	
IPv4 Address Labe	1   IP Address  Netmask		
[Help]	[Back]	[Cancel]	[Next]
F1 Help F3 Add F9 Canc	el <b>F10</b> Next		

- 7 Press F10 to continue.
- 8 Use the arrow keys to select Hostname/DNS.
- 9 Tab to **Domain Name** and enter your domain.
- 10 Tab to the Name Server fields and enter one or more Name Servers.

llobal Options—Overview—Hostname/DNS—Rout: Hostname and Domain Name—	ing	
Hostname TTS I Assign Hostname to Loopback IP Set Hostname via DHCP yes: any 4	Domain Name	
odify DNS Configuration Custom Policy Rule se Custom Policy + STATIC + Name Servers and Domain Search List Name Server 2	Domain Search-	
Name Server 3		

11 Tab back up to the top row and use the arrow keys to select Routing.

YaST2 - lan @ FMS		
Network Settings _f6lobal Options—Overview—Hostname/DNS—Routing		
Default IPv4 Gateway	Device	
Default IPv6 Gateway	- Device -	+
[Routing Table-		
Destination  Gateway  Netmask Devi 192.168.200.2   192.168.200.1   32   eth1	ce Options 	
EAdd I EEd i 1	][Delete]	
[ ] Enable IPv4 Forwarding [ ] Enable IPv6 Forwarding		
(Help]	[Cance]]	с ок ј
F1 Help F3 Add F4 Edit F5 Delete F9 Cancel F	18 <u>ok</u>	

12 Enter your default Gateway and press F10 to save the changes.

The changes are applied and the network is restarted.

- 13 Press F9 to quit and return to the console.
- 14 Once you are back on the console, ping your vCenter® by FQDN to ensure that the name server, gateway, and IP are working as expected.

Next step: If you need to change the timezone for your virtual appliance, see Change the timezone.

## Change the timezone

The timezone settings in your virtual appliance can be changed in several ways. The following options are recommended:

- Option 1. Manually change the date
- Option 2. Manually change the timezone
- Option 3. Change the hardware clock
- Option 4. Change the localtime file
- Option 5. Change the timezone file

### **Option 1. Manually change the date**

#### To manually change the date:

- 1 Use the date command for both viewing and changing the date and time.
- 2 Change the time by using the date command followed by the month, day, hour, minute, and year, all numeric and no spaces. For example, to set the date and time to "November 2nd, 2003 12:57", use the command

date 110212572003

### **Option 2. Manually change the timezone**

#### To manually change the timezone:

- 1 The hardware clock can be updated in UTC (coordinated universal time), or a required local time. hwclock --utc --systohe
- 2 Update it to local time by removing the --utc and adding --localtime.

hwclock --systohc

### **Option 3. Change the hardware clock**

The date and time can be changed directly to the hardware clock and then used to update the system clock.

#### To change the system clock by updating the hardware clock:

1 Change the hardware clock.

```
hwclock --set --date="02/19/2003 15:00:00"
hwclock -- show
```

2 Change the system clock.

```
hwclock --hctosys
date
```

### **Option 4. Change the localtime file**

The /etc/ localtime file is a link to or a copy of a file containing information about time zone. Zone information files are usually in /usr/share/zoneinfo, but this depends on your distribution. If the localtime file points to a zone info file that is not the time zone, this can be changed by browsing the directories in /usr/share/zoneinfo to find the local zone or country, then find the city or a city in the same time zone, and link localtime to it.

#### To change the localtime file:

• \$ ln -sf /usr/share/zoneinfo/America/Los\_Angeles /etc/localtime

Some applications may use the configuration file */etc/sysconfig/clock* to determine the current time zone, so it is recommended to set the ZONE entry (for example, "America/Los\_Angeles").

### **Option 5. Change the timezone file**

#### To change the timezone file:

Navigate to /etc/timezone and enter the required timezone. For example, if only "Asia/Vladivostok" is
contained in this file, remove this entry using a text editor of your choice (for example vi) and replace it with
the required entry (for example, "Australia/Melbourne"). A restart of the appliance/VM is not required after
making this change.

# Configuring anti-virus exclusion settings

Anti-virus software may negatively impact the CPU and system performance of machines running Foglight. To reduce resource consumption, it is highly recommended to exclude the relevant directory from being scanned by the anti-virus software. The common installation directory is as follows:

- :\Dell\
- :\Quest\
- :\Quest Software\

# **Upgrade the virtual appliance**

This section provides instructions for upgrading the Foglight-Evolve-vApp virtual appliance.

For details, see these topics:

- Upgrade paths
- Upgrade the vApp

# **Upgrade** paths

The Foglight Evolve 6.0.0 virtual appliance can be directly upgraded from Foglight Evolve 9.0, 9.1, 9.2 and 9.3, and Foglight for Virtualization, Enterprise Edition version 8.8, 8.8.5, 8.9, 8.9.1, 8.9.2, and 8.9.3. To upgrade from Foglight for Virtualization, Enterprise Edition version 8.7.5, 8.7, 8.6, you must first upgrade the virtual appliance to version 8.9.3, then to version 6.0.0.

# Upgrade the vApp

#### To upgrade the virtual appliance:

1 Download the Foglight Evolve Linux x86 64 installer from Quest Support:

https://support.quest.com/foglight-evolve/9.3/download-new-releases

- 2 In preparation for the upgrade, take a backup or snapshot of all relevant VMs. This includes both the *FMS, FgIAM,* and *DBS* VMs, as well as any additional VMs hosting agents.
- 3 Immediately prior to upgrading, deactivate all running agents. This can be done individually from the Administration tab on each domain's Environment dashboard, or from the dashboard found in Dashboards > Administration > Agents > Agent Status.
- 4 Using an stp client (for example, Bitvise SSH Client), connect to the *FMS* machine on port 22, *sttp://IP of FMS:22*, as the *foglight* user. The password is *foglight* if it has not been changed after installation.
- 5 Extract the files from the downloaded zip file and copy the installer to the directory:

/home/foglight/Quest/Foglight/upgrade

- 6 Log into the FMS VM console as the user foglight (default password is foglight).
- 7 Type the following command to set execute permissions on files in the upgrade folder for the *foglight* user:

chmod -R 744 /home/foglight/Quest/Foglight/upgrade

8 Run the following command to start the upgrade process:

/home/foglight/Quest/Foglight/upgrade/Foglight-Evolve-<version>-install\_linuxx86\_64.bin -i console

- 9 Follow the prompts to accept the license agreement.
- 10 When prompted for an installation directory, enter (case sensitive):

/home/foglight/Quest/Foglight

- 11 When prompted, select 1 for upgrade.
- 12 When prompted after the Pre-Installation Summary, press Enter to continue.
- 13 When prompted for the database running state, press Enter to continue.
- 14 When prompted, select 1 to Run Now.
- 15 When prompted, press Enter to exit the installer.

It usually takes five to ten minutes for the FMS to start up and be ready for login.

- TIP: Run the following command and monitor the cpu utilization for the *fms* process. i top -u foglight It will be very busy while the upgrade is finishing, but it settles down to a few percent when it is ready to login.
- 16 Allow the startup to complete, then login using a browser.
- 17 To complete Foglight Agent Manager (FgIAM) and agent upgrade, see the "Upgrade the Foglight Agent Manager" in the Foglight Upgrade Guide.

# About Us

Quest creates software solutions that make the benefits of new technology real in an increasingly complex IT landscape. From database and systems management, to Active Directory and Office 365 management, and cyber security resilience, Quest helps customers solve their next IT challenge now. Around the globe, more than 130,000 companies and 95% of the Fortune 500 count on Quest to deliver proactive management and monitoring for the next enterprise initiative, find the next solution for complex Microsoft challenges and stay ahead of the next threat. Quest Software. Where next meets now. For more information, visit https://www.quest.com/.

# **Technical support resources**

Technical support is available to Quest customers with a valid maintenance contract and customers who have trial versions. You can access the Quest Support Portal at https://support.quest.com.

The Support Portal provides self-help tools you can use to solve problems quickly and independently, 24 hours a day, 365 days a year. The Support Portal enables you to:

- Submit and manage a Service Request.
- View Knowledge Base articles.
- Sign up for product notifications.
- Download software and technical documentation.
- View how-to-videos.
- Engage in community discussions.
- · Chat with support engineers online.
- · View services to assist you with your product.